
 
 
 
 
September 29, 2017 
 
 
TO:  Supervisor Mark Ridley-Thomas, Chairman 
  Supervisor Hilda L. Solis 
  Supervisor Sheila Kuehl 
  Supervisor Janice Hahn 
  Supervisor Katheryn Barger 
 
FROM: Mitchell H. Katz, M.D. 
  Director 
 
SUBJECT: MOBILE STROKE UNIT MUTUAL AID REPORT 
 
 
This report is in response to the June 20, 2017 Board Motion by 
Supervisors Hahn and Solis instructing the Director of Health Services 
and the Fire Chief to report back to the Board on how to implement a 
mutual aid agreement, so that the mobile stroke units can work with all 
ambulance companies that have contracts with the County.  
 
The County Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Agency coordinates 
all pre-hospital emergency medical care within the County.  As such, 
they are responsible for the Exclusive Operating Area (EOA) contracts 
with ambulance companies, regulation of ambulance companies 
through the County’s Ambulance Ordinance 7.16, and promulgation of 
policies and procedures utilized by the fire departments and 
ambulance companies responding to 9-1-1 emergencies. 
 
Any medical unit responding to 9-1-1 emergencies needs to be 
recognized by the EMS Agency and incorporated into agreements, 
policies and protocols.  To approve and to coordinate the use of the 
Mobile Stroke Unit (MSU) within the EMS system, the contracts with 
ambulance companies have been reviewed and a mutual aid policy 
drafted. 
 
The EOA contracts with the private ambulance companies includes the 
following language: “WORK,  3.2.1:  This exclusivity does not apply to 
any Federal, State, or County owned or operated Ambulance if 
authorized to transport by an authorized County agency, or to air 
ambulances if authorized to transport by an authorized County agency 
or by other lawful authority, all of which may be used within the 
Contractor’s EOA to provide Emergency Ambulance Transportation 
Services 911 Response.” 
 
The above language applies to the MSU as, University of California 
Los Angeles (UCLA) is a State entity and its use within the County is 
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approved by the EMS Agency and incorporated into policy.  Therefore, an amendment 
to the current EOA contracts with the private ambulance companies will not be 
necessary. 
 
The attached prehospital care policy, Reference No. 817 Regional Mobile Response 
Teams, defines the use, activation and requirements of the MSU within the system.  It 
defines two regional resources that can be utilized by any 9-1-1 responding agency 
within the County if needed for the specialized need (trauma extrication and acute 
stroke diagnostics and treatment). The EMS Agency worked with the UCLA MSU 
administrative team to draft this policy and assisted with any process issues to ensure 
the MSU patient enrollment began in time to participate in the national research study. 
Reference No. 817 was approved through the committee process and the EMS 
Commission on September 20, 2017.  
 
Though the EMS Agency will not need to amend the EOA ambulance agreements, the 
UCLA MSU team will need agreements with the individual city fire departments to 
address operational issues, insurance and indemnification.  
 
START UP PROGRESS 
 
UCLA has successfully completed an agreement with the City of Santa Monica for 
deployment with their Fire Department and began operation on September 11, 2017.  
They continue working with the City of Los Angeles to finalize a written agreement 
defining their operations with the Fire Department.  UCLA MSU, the EMS Agency and 
research partners have completed all necessary policies and procedures for patient 
enrollment and destinations.   
 
The EMS Agency has notified all their stakeholder groups about the MSU operations 
and in conjunction with UCLA, is seeking other areas within the County for operations to 
begin.  Specific areas of expansion the County’s Fire District is exploring include the 
cities of Long Beach and Compton. In addition, County Fire is in the process of 
investigating an agreement with UCLA to deploy the MSU in one of their areas. We are 
looking forward to having this additional resource within the EMS system, the first 
patient enrollment and the study results.   
 
If you have any questions, please contact me or Cathy Chidester, EMS Agency 
Director, at (562) 347-1604. 
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